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September 20, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
(VC#177203), Concord, NH, in the amount of $4,493,262 for the Fuel Assistance Program
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2025. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in FY 2024 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY 2024

02-52-52-520510-33540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $4,493,262

2) Further request authorization to advance Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. $458,673 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide
CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver FAP services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract
with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the
implementation of the program.



His Excellency, Governor Christofrfier T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

September 20,2023
Page 2 of2

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Fimds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

espectfiilly submitted,

' Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Nslicc: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

Department of Energy

1.2 Stale Agency Address

21 S. Fruit St., Stc. JO, Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc
1.4 Contractor Address

P.O. Box 1016,2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord. NH 03302

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 225-3295

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33540000-074

1.7 Completion Date

September 30, 2025

1.8 Price Limitation

54,493,262

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Joshua W. Elliott. Director, Policy and Programs Division

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-6003

I. II Contractor Signature

8/21/2023

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michael Tabory, Chief Operating Officer

1.13 State Agen^ ̂^aiure 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Jared S. Chicoine, Commissioner

\Ui Approval by the N.H. Department of Administrdlion, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

If Director, On:
1.16 Approval by the A;i^y General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

^  On: 9/1/2023

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SCRV[CES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I. i ("State"),
engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or both,
identified and more particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT B
which is incorporated herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hcrcunder, shall become effective on the date
the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement, unless
no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement shall
become efTcctivc on the date the Agreement is signed by the Stale
Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the Effective
Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor, and in the
event that this Agreement does not become effective, the Stale shall
have no liability to the Contractor, including without limitation, any
obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services
performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all
obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation, the
continuance of paymcnLs hereunder. arc contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative or executive
action (hat reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation
or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope for
Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available,
if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or terminate the Services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
Idcmificd in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account are reduced
or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment arc
identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the
total of all payments authoriixd, or actually made hereunder, exceed
the Price Limiiaiion set forth in block 1.8. The payment by the State
of the contract price shall be the only and the complete reimbursement
to the Contractor for all expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the
Contractor in the performance hereof, and shall be the only and the
complete compensation to the Contractor for the Services.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts otherwise
payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those liquidated

amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80:7-c
or any other provision of law.
5.4 The Slate's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 in connection with the performance ofthe Services, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orders
of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which impose any
obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to,
civil rights and equal employment opportunity laws and the
Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace, Executive
order 2020-01. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by
monies of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with ail
federal executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any
rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue
to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with
all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because
of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status, physical or
mental disability, religious creed, national origin, gender identity, or
gender expression, and will take affirmative action to prevent such
discrimination, unless exempt by state or federal law, The Contractor
shall ensure any .subconiractors comply with these nondiscriminaiion
requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or
other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the Slate or United Stales access
to any ofihc Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose
of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and all rules,
regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized to
do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any successor,
shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this Agreement.
8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event of
Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this
Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Stale may take
any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
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8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days from
the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days after giving
the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement
and ordering that the portion of the contract price which would
otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from the date of
such notice until such time as the State determines that the Contractor
has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Contractor:
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Cphtractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of any Event
of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specif^'ing the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole discretion,
terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in part, by thirty
(30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor that (he State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Ser\'iccs. the Contractor shall,
at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer, not later
than fifteen (15) calendar days aflcr the date of termination, a report
("Termination Report") describing in detail all Services performed,
and the contract price earned, to and including the date of temiination.
In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen
(15) calendar days of notice of early termination, develop and submit
to the State a transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10. 1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean all
data, information and things developed or obtained during the
pcrfoimancc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings,
pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda,
papers, and documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the State,
or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to
the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any
reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law,
Disclosure requires prior writion approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of the
State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees, agents
or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive any
benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments provided by the
State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement, No such assignment,
delegation, or other transfer shall be efTcciive without the written
consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control .shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in which
a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct or indirect
owner of fifly percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similar
equity interests, or combined voting power of the Contractor, or(b) the
sale of ail or substantially all of the assets of the Contractor.
12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The Slate is cmitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment

agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained in a
subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the State, its ofTiccrs, and employees from and
against all actions, claims, damages, demands, judgments, fines,
liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to this Agreement
directly or indirectly arising from death, personal injury, propcit>*
damage, intellectual property infringement, or other claims asserted
against the State, its officers, or employees caused by the acts or
omissions of negligence, reckless or-willful misconduct, or fraud by
the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State
shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising
under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination of this
Agrccmcnt-

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and continuously
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to
obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liiabilily insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$ 1.000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 80%
of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of New
Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or any successor, a ccrtificatc(s) of insurance for all
insurance required under this Agreement. At the request of the
Contacting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor shall provide
ccrtificate(s) of insurance for all rencwa!(s) of insurance required
under this Agreement. The ccitificate(s) of insurance and any renewals
thereof shall be attached and arc Incorporated herein by reference.
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15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing Ihis agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from, the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require any
subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of Workers'
Compensation in connection with activities which the person proposes
to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or any successor, proof
of Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not
be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation premiums
or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor
or employee of Contractor, which might arise under applicable State
of New Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with
the performance of the Ser\'ices under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement shall
not act as a waiver of the right of the Slate to later enforce any such
rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by
certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office
addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4,
herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge
by the Governor and Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire
unless no such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant
to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except where
the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The wording used
in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the parties to express their

mutual intent, and no rule ofconstruction shall be applied against or in
favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the breach
or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding arbitration,
but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the Merrimaek County
Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall have exclusive
jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between the

terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any other
portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto, the terms
of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for the
sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS, The headings throughout the Agreement arc for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in no
way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation,
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense; execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement and
give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary
to any state or federal law, the remaining provi.sions of this Agreement
will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may bo
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the parties, and supersedes ail prior agreements and
understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor

shall deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a
qualified independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or
grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every
four years.

3. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years' questioned costs along with an
Agency response to the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all
0MB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to New Hampshire
Department of Energy (NH DOE). The audit shall be forwarded to NH DOE within one
month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

4. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to
those of any Final Report described in Exhibit A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR
200.334 - Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been
resolved.

7. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995," the
following provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a. Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the
sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-
made."

b. Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including
but not limited to slate and local governments and recipients of federal research
grants, shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or
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project which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of
federal funds for the project or program, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount
of the total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non
governmental sources."

8. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

9. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance
Program expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance
Program vendor payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's)
general operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48
hours after being received electronically from the State. CAAs must submit the bank
account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to NH DOE prior
to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program funds
must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled with any
other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-
dedicated bank account statement to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

10. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost rate
is 10 percent.
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. hereinafter the Contractor
agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low-income individuals and
agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program in
accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the
Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as
determined by NH DOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination, and certification of FAP applicants;

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments;

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as
undefined portions of their rent;

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in
the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual; and

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the Slate, the
State agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of$4,493,262 (which hereinafter is referred to
as the "Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2024 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from
the US Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council
approval, the following funds will be authorized:

$357,287 for administration costs, of which $60,775 will be issued as a cash advance;

$3,978,975 for program costs, of which $397,898 will be issued as a cash advance;
$157,000 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract arc upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2025.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded fimds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.
Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in

accordance with procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program
Procedures Manual.

The Contractor may use up to two percent (2%) of the funds allocated for program costs to pay
for program support expenses. Program support expenses will be defined in an Information
Memoranda issued by the New Hampshire Department of Energy.

CFDA Title: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

CFDANo: 93.568

Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Federal Agency: Health & Human Services
Administration for Children and Families

Office of Community Services
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 etseq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the GeneraJ Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and require
certification by Contractor (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a Contractor (and by
inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in
each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when
the Agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension
of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors
using this form should,send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 South Fruit St., Stc. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about;

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and

L1HEAP24CAPBM P37 j^ibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the perfomiance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
2 Industrial Park Drive #2, Concord, NH 03301

Check n if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Upon Governor and Council Approval tltrough September 30, 2025

Contractor Name Period covered by this Certification

Michael Tabory, Chief Operating Officer

Nam^^d Title of Authorized Contractor •̂presentative

August 21, 2023

Contractor Representative S>^atureiveS>^ Date

LIHEAP24 CAPBM
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
3[9of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period:. Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30, 2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
conu*aclor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by^ction 1352, Title 31, U.S. Codji^'ATw person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject Ufa civil P?^)^ o^qi less tharpSlB^OOOxmd not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Chief Operating Officer

Contractor RepresentaKve Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. August 21, 2023
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debamient, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and l.l2ofthe General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's (NH DOE) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person fVom participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Deharment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debaiment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, slate or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Deharment, Suspension, Ineiigibiiity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debannent, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibiiity, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," wj,thout mbdlficatjpfHTr|fl lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-jK^erbd tran»ctipi

Chief Operating Officer

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. August 21, 2023
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections j. 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Chief Operating Officer
Contractor Repfesehtativ^ignaturc Contractor's Representative Title

Communitv Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. August 21. 2023
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also knovm as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid ftinds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/ Contractor certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/contractor further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Sub-contractor shall certify accordingly.

Chief Operating Officer

Contractor Repfesentati*^ Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Contractor Name

L1HEAP24 CAPBM
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FAP Approval to Obligate

STATE

EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Exhibit I

First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS Only ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 538.220.00 5,646,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 6,546,372.60 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o:oo

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1,185.551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 5,380,821.60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 95,663.00 1,003,586.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 1,170,209.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 .0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663.00 796,474.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 963,097.00

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,967,149.00

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000.00 84.220.00 1,612,571.00

SCS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 83,835.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 825.00 64,960.00 847,617.00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55,110.00 684,136.60 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 757.60 55,110.00 565,763.60

TCCA

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,695,757.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984;00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,391,773.00
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial
award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000,
the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique entity identifier (UEI #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $30M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 1 10-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy andioxomply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accjs^tabihty aty^Trarlsparen^'''?'Cct.

_  Michael Tabory, Chief Operating Officer

(Contractor Represer^ve'signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Augusf21. 2023

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

I. The UEI number for your entity is: FND1A6MY3JD3

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $30,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

.NO X YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.G.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X YES

if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

LIHEAP 24 CAPBM
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Sccretar\' of Slate ofihe Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprollt Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify thai all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofi'ice is conecrned.

Business ID; 6J02I

CertiHcate Number: 0005774597

ai

la.

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto sei my hand and cause to be alTixcd

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 9ih dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965e

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Christopher J. Pvles. Chairperson. Board of Directors, hereby certify that;

1. 1 am a duty elected officer of Communitv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called

and held on March 9. 2023. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive OfTicer/Executive Director, Michaei Tabory,
Chief Operating OfTicer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven

Qregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chairperson, Board of Directors are duty
authorized on behalf of Communitv Action Program Beiknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter

into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or

departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other

instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her

judgment t>e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence

that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

y

Dated: 8/18/2023 Signature of Elected Officer /

'2

Niroe: Cbrist'opher J. Pyles
Title: Chairperson, Board of Direcforsof Direcfo

Rav. Va/2023

kirKCAPBM CO* 2023

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative OfHce 2 Indusidil Pack Ddve, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 Try/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax:603 228-1898

Website: cipbm.ocg



/KC^RD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

03/14/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Susan Sullivan

K.F.„. (603)669-3216 (603)645-4331
AOMESS- ^^^■certs@cro3Ssgency.com

INSURERtS) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A Selective Insurance Co. of SC 19259
INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.
P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER a Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C Federal Ins Co 20281

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 ALL 23-24 WOOAO REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR
LTH TYPE OF INSURANCE iKTilRW! POUCY NUMBER

POliCV£FF
(MM/DO/YYYYI

POLICyeXF
IMM/DO/YYYYl LIMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LUBiUTY

€ 1 X| OCCUR

S2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000.000
1 CLAIMS-MAO OAUkGE TO HLNTED

PREMISES (Ea occurrancal , 1.000.000

MED EXPfAny ona parson) , 20.000
PERSONAL & AOV INJURY 5 1.000,000

G£ln. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY X 1 X| LOC
OTHER: 1

GENERAL AGGREGATE j 3.000.000
PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AG<5 , 3,000.000

1
$

A

AUTOMOBILE UAfilUTY

i

S2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea iceWent) S 1.000.000

X ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

IHEDULEO
rros
INOWNEO
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) s

SC
AL BODILY INJURY (Par acddant) s

NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddeni) s

t

A

X 1 UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE S2509940 10/01/2022 10/01/2023
EACH OCCURRENCE , 5.000.000
AGGREGATE , 5.000.000

DEO 1 X| RETENTION $ ® 1 s

B

WORKERS COMPENSAnON
AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY y/N
ANY PROPRlETOR/RLRTNER/EXECunVE rTTT
OFFICER/MEI>eER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
K yWi describe und6r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A HCHS20230000547 (3a.) NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

•V' PER OTH.
^ STATUTE FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1, 1.000.000
E.L. WSEASE - POLICY LIMIT , 1.000.000

C
Directors & Officers Liability

82471794 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

; Limit

Deductible

S 1.000,000

$5,000

DESCRtPnON OF OPERATIONS r LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Addltjon«l RtniMlu Sch«(lul«. may b* MUchad If mora apaca is raqulrad)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

State of New Hampshire; Dept Energy
21 South Fruit Street

Suite 10

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATTVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)
e 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the.accompanylng co'nsolidated financia! statements of Community Action Program of
Belkriap-Merrimack Counties, inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 28, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 28; 2022
and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash Rows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We. cofiducted our audit, iri accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further■ described in the Auditors' Responsjbilities for the Audit.of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc^.and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant.ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
Is.sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible: for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control, relevant to the. preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatemeht, whether
due to fraud or erior.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are.condltions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s ability to continue as a gpirig concern within: one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors'- Respdhsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our.objectives are to obtain/easonabie assurance about whether the consplldated financial statements
as:a whole are free frorn materiarrnisstatement, whether due tp fraud or error, and to Issue an auditors'
report that includes "our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leyel of assufance^ut'ls not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted Jn accordance^ with generally
accepted auditing^ standards ar\6 Government Auditing Standards will always 'detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of'hot delecting a material misstatement "resulting from fraud Is
higher than for one resulting .from error, as fraud may involve collusion,-forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. MIsstatements are considered material If there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they", would Influence the judgment made
by-a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In perfpfming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, v</e:-

•  ;Exercis.e professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
'Whetlier due to fraud or .error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to. those
risks,. Such procedures include examining, on a lest basis, evidence regarding the "arpbunts and
disclosuresin the Oonsolldated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose, of expressing ah
opiriioh on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belk'naprMerrim'ack Counties.
Inc."s Internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
■accounting estim.Otes made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation pf the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, In our judgment, there are conditions pr events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action- Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other' matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
mattefa that we Identified during the audit.



SuppfemehtaryJnformaifon

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of Ibrming an opinion on the cxDnsplidated financial statement^
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required-by f}tle;2 U.S.
(^de of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Adrhinistrative- Requirements, Cost Principles, .and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such informatiori is the responsibility of
management and was derived, from and relates directly to the Underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied "in the audit of the consolidated financial statements-and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with, auditing, standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, is fairly stated, in all material respects,, in relatioh. to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

,lh accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued bur report datod September 8,
2022, on our consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack, Counties, .lnc..'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of Ihat-reporl is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provlde-an opinion on the effectiveness of Gornrhuhity Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
.report Is an integral part of ah audit performed in accordance .with Government Auditing Standards \n
considering. Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Concord. New Hampshire
September 8, 2022



CQMMUNITV ACTION program BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

I CURRENT ASSETS

'Cash

Accounts' receivable

Inventory
'Prepaid expenses
Investments

Tptal current assets

■PROPERTY
■ Land, buildings and Improvements

'Equipment, furniture and^vehicles;
Construction In process

Total property

Less accurhulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS
Cash escfbw and reserve funds
Tenant security deposits
Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portiori of notes payable
Line of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

total current llabnitles

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Paycheck jProtectlon Program loan
Notes payable, less current portion shown above
Tenant security deposits

Total liabilities

NCT ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With, donor restrictions'

total net assets

TOTAL LIABILtTIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

$  ■1,384.485
5,244,621

271,925
33,926

138,793

7.073,753

7,368,799
6.335.485

41,401

13,745,685

7,526,363

6i217.322

89,468
•9.120

65.488

164,076

.314.265
154,350

3,635,655
1.086.207
1,537.602

6.728.279

260.439
620,050
'9,120

7.637.888

5,179.734
637,529

5.817.263

2021 '

899,766
3;762,609.

55,895
73.709

127.996

- 4.920.17,5

7.146.516
6.117,020
"  18.126

13.281.662

7,639.290

5,642.372

65,437
6;881

72,318

$ 13,455,151 $ .10.634.865

$' 213.444-
380,028

1.525,832
788,951

■1.036.941

3,945;196

1.935,300
939,697

6:681

6.827:074

2,758,959
1.048.832

3.807.791

$ 13,455.151 $ 10.634.865

See Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION-PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOiLiDATEDvSTATEMENT OF ACtlVltlES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 128. 2022

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards-

Rental Income

Other funds

Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Ip-klnd
United Way

Interest Income

Realized gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program
Managefnenl

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$ 36.482.087 $
135,298

2.526.432
1,615,427

592.136
2.123

74

7,200

41,360,777

.3.062.287

44,423,064

40,084,851
1.917,438

42,002,289

2.420,775

2.758.959

2,650,984

2,650,984

(3,062.287)

(411,303)

1,048.832

•Total

$ .36,482.087
'135,298

-5,177,416
.1;615,427

592; 136
2,123

74

7.200

44,011.761

(411.303) 44.011.761

40,084.851
1,917,438

42,002,289

2.009,472

.3.867,791 •

$  5^79,734 $ 637,529 $ 5,817.263

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CQMMUNITV-ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES.,INC.

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental Inoome
Other funds

In-kind

United Way
Interest Income

Realized gain pn sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS.RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program
Management

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE GAIN ON
INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

GAIN ON jNyESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Dohofs
Restrictions Total

$  20,625,325
123,657

2,375,403

■ 490,035
' 5,297

383

3,500

$

3,733.525

$  ,20,625.325
123;657

6.108,928

490,035
5.297

383
3,500

23,623,600 3.733.525 27,357,125

3,047,507 (3,047i507)

26,671,107 686,018 ^27.3'57,125

26,194,346
1.274.501

- 26,194,346
1,274,501

27,468.847 27,468,847

(797,740). 686.018 (111.722)

64,397 . 64,397

(733,343) 686,018 (47.325)

2,992,894 362.814 3,355,708

499,408 . 499.408

$  .2,758,959 $  1,048,832 $  3;807,791

See Notes to Cdnsolldated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2^ 2022

Salaries and wages
RayrdH taxes and'benefits
Travel'

Occupancy
Program services'
Other costs:

•Accounting fees
• Legal fees
..Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences., convenWons and meetings

.Interest
Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and rnaintenance

'■^Computer services
Other

.Depreciation
Ihrkind

•Total functional expenses

Prodram Manaoemeht Total:

$  7.961,177 $  1,180;579 $ 9.141.756
2,296,690 228,375 2.525.065
' 'lOA.WS 9,64,8 '203,991
1,267.982 114,418 1i382,400

25,639.659 - 25,639,659

. 74,855 74,855
15.361 152 15,513

159,844 44-,534 204.i378-
49,860 8,731 58,591

1,141 - 1,141
28,133 27.696 55,829
13,964 - 13,964
29,187 26,841 56,028

124,730 43,856- 168,586
16,276 - 16,276
88,702 104,14Z 192,844

111,990 - .111,990
926.679 53;6il 980,290
566,151 - 566,151
592.9,82 - 592,982

$  ■40,084,851 *$ 1.917.438 $ 42:002,289

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2021

Program 'Management

Saiaiids and Wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel'
Occupancy
Program services.
Other costs-

Accounting fees
Legal fees'
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and rnaiptenance
Printing and publications
Conferences; convdhtions and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
•Computer services
Other

Depreciation'
In-kind

Tplal funclionat expeiises

8.423.286

2,308,290
145,104

1,293,121
11,796,741

19,604

165,804
56,087

6,736

34,562

632

■39.595
123,704

10.040
190,837
47.178

584,982
458,009
490,034

$ 587:382
229,777

609
•136.322

80.013

30,710
8,986

3.551

22.938
.27.528

7.019
62,549

8.660
68,257

Total

9.010,668
2,538,067

145,913
1,429,443

11',796.741

80,013
19,604

196,514
65,073
6,736

38,113
632

62.533
151,232

17,059
i253.386

55,838
•653,239
458,009
490.034

$ 26,194.346 5 T274,501 % 27.468.847

See Notes to Cdnsolidated Financial Statements
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CQMMUtgiTY. ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR tHE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

2022 .2021

CASH FLOVyS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
■Change In net assetS'
Adjustments-lo reconcile change In net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Paycheck Protection program\ loan forgiveness
Interest on deferred financing costs
Realized gain on, sale of equipment
Gaih on investment in lirtiited partnership
Decrease.(increase) in current assets;-

Accounts receivable
Inventory*
Prepaid experises
Duefrorh.related party

Decrease (increase) in current liabilities:
Accounts-payable

2,009,472

566,151
(1.615.427)

483
(7.200)

(1.481,812)
(216.031)

39.78T
(65.488)

2,109,823

(47.325)

458.009

•484
(3.500)

(64,397)

(1,203,458)
(32.979),
(1B.723)

356,371
Accrued expenses
Refundableadvances

297.256
■500,861

23,690
(47.575)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,137.869 (579i203)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property •
Additions to property
investments*

7,200
(1,14-1,101)

(10.797)' •

■3,500
(618;41'0)

(17,918)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,144,698) (632,828)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVmES
Net Paycheck protection, idari
Net repayments on line of credit
Repayment of long tenn:debt

(39,434)
(225.678)
(219,309)

1,935,300
(169.972)
(199.1'52)

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (484.421) 1.566,176

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 508,750 ■ 354,145

CASH AND RESTRICTED CAiSH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 965,203 549,026

CASH AND RESTRICTED.CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP. 62,032

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE. END OF YEAR S  1,473,953 S -  .985,203

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:
Cash

Cash escrow and reserve funds
S  1.384,485

89,468'
S 899,766

65,437

$  1.473,953 $ 965,203

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MgRRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

•CONSOLIOATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
'FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

:SUPPLEMENTAC DISCLOSURE OF'CASH FLOW INFORMATION:.

Cash paid during the year for inlcrest

2022

S6.02B

2021

'62.533

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF,NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts receivable %

Prepaid expenses
Property, net
Security deposits

Total transfer offsets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liablillles from ncwlyconsolidated LP:
Accounts pa^ble
Accrued exp^^s
Security deposits.
Note payable

Total transfer of llablHUias from rlewiy cor^oiUaled LP

Total transfer of partners' cspital.from newly consolldaleid LP
Partnership capital previously recorded as irivestmerit'in related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital i^.m newly conwDdated LP

2.496
iO;827

980.089
6.132

$  1.001.644

8.625
7.062
8i132

i ■  ? 360.330

% $ 499,408
- 203.838

% s •703,246

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemente^
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP ̂  MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

1. organization and summary of significant ACCQUNTINiS POUCiES

Nature of Organization

.Community,Action Program.Belknap - .Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New''Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, llvirig and support
needs pf the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as vyejl as
state wide. Thes.e services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Comrriunity Action
.Program Belknap-Merrirhack Counties, Inc..-and the following, entities, as Community
Action Prpgrarn Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has both .an econoniic interest and
control of the entities through a niajority voting Interest in their governing board.. All
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
■consolidated financial statements.

■  Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
•  CAP BMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting
The-accompanyrng consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of .accounting in accordance with the accounting pririclples generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation
The^iConsolidated financial, statements of the_ Organization have been prepared In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization, to report' information regarding its financial position arid activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions Include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be.expended for any
purpose In performirig the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net; .assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's

I riianagement and'board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets, subject to
stipulations iriipdsed by donors and grantors. Sorne donor restrictions are
ternporarV in nature; those restrictions will be met by-actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
In nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In
peiipetuity.
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PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Donor re.stricted coritributions are -reported as increases In ;rlet assets wjth donor
restrictions: When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
ddhoV restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities,

The Organization had net assets with donor re.strictioris of $637,529'and, $1i048,832 at
February 28/2022 and 2021. respectiveiy. See Note 14.

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized^ as a
nonprofit cprporatipn -and is exempt from federal income taxes upder Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to "be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States -and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations .by tax authorities for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "O" Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred inco.meTaxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codiftcation No. 740 (ASC 740), "Accounting for Income Taxes".. The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
betweerj the financial, reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabijities at the enacted tax rate expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities, the. Corporation has- no
federal net operating loss carryfonwards available at February 28, 2022 and 2021.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership is taxed as a partnership. Federal income taxes are
not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are included in the
partners' federal incgme tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New Hampshire
and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting'Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740). Accounting for Income faxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits'of tax return ppsitions in consolidated financial statements.. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the.past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.

12



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES: IMC.

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND.2Q21

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the d.ate of the donation, Assets purchased with a useful, life ip excess of ..one year
and exceeding $5,0.0.0 afe capitalized unless a lower threshold, is required by certain
fOndi.n'g sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis oVer.the estimated
useful lives of the. related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, .fumiture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates.and
assuhiptidns'that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets, and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consoiidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all "liquid investments purchased with priginai maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed .federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced-any lossbs in
such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with fespect to .these
accounts.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC Np.
958, Accounting for Cootributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create Or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skjlls, and ■ wduld
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions,in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were hot met.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions
Donated facilitiesr' services and supplies are reflected as revenue,and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This, represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies -arid space! thai the
Organization might incur under, normal operating activities. The Organization received
$592.'136 arid $490,035 in donated facilities, services and supplies.fdr the years ended
February 28, 2022 and February 28, 2021, respectively, as follows;
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■ CQIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - IVIERRIMACk

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2022 AND 2021

The Organization receives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded In accordance vvith .FAS6 ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $18,731 and $18,937 for the years ended Febnjary 28,
2022 and February 28; 2021, respectively.

The prgahizatibn also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with fASB ASC No. 958. The estirfiated fair
value of these-food 'cprnmpdities and goods was determined to be $573,405 and
$471i098 for the years endect February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

A'dvertlslnq

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28, 2022 and February 28, 2021 totaled $134,193
and $14,287, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of weathefizalion supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as inciome to the extent that related expenses and. conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received .prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with dorior restrictions if they-are received with donor imposed stipulations that .limit
the-use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution is received, the Organisation reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Program Service Revenue

Program seiVice revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are perforrhed.

Rental Revenue

The drgahization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as Incorhe,, monthly, when rents become due, and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases.are for a term of
one year and are cancelable by the tenants., Control of the leased units is transferred
to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership*expects to
be entitled to In exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the lease
will be.expen.sed as Incurred.

14



COMMUNITY ACTION PRQGRAIVI BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR'THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021'

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providirig the v^ripus'programs and other activities have been presented in
the. Consolidated.Sta.lemehts of Functional-Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs-.have'
been' allocated among the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated-usage based on tihie spent on each/program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Tirhe and effort
DepreGlation 'Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The 'following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 28, 2022
and 2021:

2022 2021

.Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,384,485 $ 899.766
Accounts receivable 5,244,621 3,762,809
Investments 138.793 127,996

Cash reserves 81.143 62,103
Cash escrow 8.325 3.334

Total financial assets -6.857.367 4.856.008

Less arridunts not available to be used within one yean
■Net assets with donor festrictiohs 637,529 1,048,832
Reserve funds 81.143 62.103

Amounts not available within one year 718.672 1.110.935

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 6.138.695 $ 3.734.073

It Is the Organizatlon'.s goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approxinnkes $6,710,000 and $4,360,000, .at February 28, 2022 and
2021, resjsectively. The Organization has. a line of credit with $445,650 arid .$219,972,
available to,borrow on at February 28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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- ItflERRIMAGK COUNTIES- INC.

NOTES rp consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE Years ended FEBRUARYs28. 2022 and 2021

3; ACCOUNTS.RECEIVABLE

Accoui;^ts receivable are stated at the amount management expects'^tb collect from
balances outstanding at .year end. Balances that are still outstanding' after management
hal Used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and'a credit to accounts receivable.'the, allowance for uncollectible accounts
was.ekirnated. to .be zero at February 28, 2022 and 2021. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue' in the period, in which the related services or expenditures are perfofrhed or
incurred; :,Funds received in advance of grantor cpriditipris being met aggregated
$1,537,802 and $'l ,036,941 as of February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers, substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28. 2022 and 2021
totaled'$186,976 and $193,103, respectively.

6. LEASED facilities
Facilities occupied by the Organization for its cprnmunity service programs are leased
under Various operating leases. The lease temns range from month to month to twenty
yeare. Fprihe year ended February 28, 2022 and 2021; the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $544,299 and $542,317, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ended
February 28 Amourit

2023 $ 478,248
.2024 41.9,395
2025 245,038
.2026 88,762
2027 88,762

thereafter 688.217

Total £ 2.008.422
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NOTES-TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28..2022 AND 2021

7. ACC^^UED EARNED. TIME
The: Organization has accrued a liability for future annual jeave time thatilts employees,
■have-earned, and'yested with the employees' in the amount of $660,158 arid $415,580 at
."February 28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The.-^Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement {the line) with a
bahk'thatjs diie on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payrhents based
on the Wall Street Journal Prirhe Rate (3.25% and 4.75% at February 28) 2022 and
2021 i respectively) plus 1 %. but not less than 6% per annum.. The line is secured by all
the Ofganizatidri's assets; There was a balance of $154,350 oul:stariding at February
28, 2022. There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2021.

the Organization .has an additional revolving line of credit, agreement (the line) in the
■arriount of ■$4p0'i000. with-a bank that is due on demand, the line calls for-'monthly
variable, interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41% and 2.62% at February 28,
2022 and 2021, -fespectivety). The line is secured by ail the Organization's aissets..
There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2022. There was-a balance'of
$38Q,028 outstanding at February 28, 2021.

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the year ended February 28, 2022, approximately $13,200,000 (30%). and
$15,300j000 (35%), respectively, of the Organization's total reyenue was received from
the pepartrhent of Health and Human Services and the Department of Treasury. For
.the year ended February 28, 2021, approximately $.11,4dd,.00.Q (42%). df the
Organization's total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon coritinued
support from the.se departments.

10. LONG" TERM DEBT
Long term debt cb.nsisted of the following as of February 28, 2022 and 2021:

2022 .2021

5,50% note payable to a financial institution in
nipntbly iristaljrnents for principal and Interest of
$1,634 through July. 2039. The note is secured by-
property of the Organization. $ 218,228 $ 225,459
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i PROGRAIVl.BELKNAP ̂  IVIERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

2022 .2021

5.75% note- payable to. a financial' inslitution in
monthly Installmepts" for principal and interest of
$13,912'through, J.uly 2023. The note is secured by
pro'perty of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Centen* 219,279 375,827

3.00% riote ipayabje . to the City of C.oricord for
leasehold improvements In monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 42,958 50,507'

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest-of $4>,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Harripshire for Eariy Head
Start. 116,572 r64,553.

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to
a bank in ■ monthly installments for principal and
Interest'of $7;511 through April 2025. $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the year
ended February 28.2022.'(See Note 11). 280,439 1.935,30,0

Non-interest bearing ,hote payable by Sandy Ledge
Limited 'Partnership to New Hampshire Housing
deferred until June 1, 2034 or until the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash is available. The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real estate. 343.081 343.081

Total longrterm debt befbre unaniortized deferred
financing cost 1,220,557 3,0.94,727

lOnamortized deferr^ed financing costs (5.803) (6.286V

1.214,754; 3,088,441

Less amounts due within one year 314:265 '213.444

Long term portion $ 900.489
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cdMIVIUNITY ACTIQN;PRQGRAIVI BELKNAP ̂  WIERRHVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO C.ONSdmDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR tHE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 2B, 2022 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28

2023

2024

2025

■2026
.20'27

Thereafter

Amount

.314,265
236,212
106,239
32,177
18,840

512.824

11. PAYCHECK PROtECTION PROGRAM
In'Aprii 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,93.5,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). Jhe PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act").

On September 14. 202-1, the Organization received partial forgiveness in the arriount of
$1,615.427. The forgiven .proceeds are included in. income for the year ended February
28, 2022. The remaining $312,873 has been converted to a loan, due in 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balance on the PPP loan at February 28, 2022 is $280,439. (See Note
10)..

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28. 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021.

Land
Building and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Construction In process

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

$  279,340 $ 279,340
7,089,45,9 6,867,176
6,335,485

41.401

13.745,685
7.528.363

6,117,020
18.126

13,281,662
7.639.290

$ 6.217.322 $ 5.642.372

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, .2022 and 202-1 totaled
$566,151 and $458,009, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - itflERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES to ̂CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Organizatibn receives grant funding from various sources., Under the terms of these
-agreements, the Organizatibn is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
.not to have been made In compliance with the laws and' regulations, the Organization
rhight be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been rriade for this
contingency'because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28. 2022.

14. 'NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net ̂ assets'with donor restrictions are available for the following .specific prograni
:servfces as of February 28, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

NH Food Pantry Coalition $  663 $ 663

Senior Center 143.437 142,817
Elder Services 68,427 499,201

f^ary Gale 25,629 -

NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,064 5,058

Summer Feeding 47,540 60,433
Comrnon'Pantry - 5,512

Caring Fund 8,792 8,791

Agency - FAR 27.307 2,604

Agency Head Start '222,258 224,847
Agency - FP/PN 87,253 87,387

Comrriunity Crisis 350 350

Other Programs 809 11.169

Total net assets with donor restrictions S  637.529 S
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GQjflMUiSJITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY.28, 2022 AND 2021

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizatibn sen/es as the nnanagemeht agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Bejniont Elderly Housing.'Inc. HUD Property
Epsofri Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
AltorVHousing fpr the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property peyelopmeht
Ozanam, Place, Inc. TransitionaYSupportive,

SeWices.,
TRCC Housing Limited .Partnership i Low Income Housing tax

Credit Property

The-services-performed'by the Organization included, marketing, accpuntin^./tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD' properties), and
maintenance of property.

The. amount due frorn the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
28; 2622 and 2021 was $324,385 and $181,384, re.spectjveiy, and is Included in
accounts receivables^ Additionally, during the year ended February:28. 2022, $65,488
was loaned to a related party and is recorded as an other asset on the consolidated
•staterhent of financial position.

16.- FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
■Cbmrhunity Action Program Belknap-Menrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to Its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
lotajed $138,793 and $126,996 at February 28, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

/ASC Topic No. '825-10, Financial 'Instruments,, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in-gerierallyr
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value ,1s
a markef-b'ased measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and' requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, lii awiordance with'FASB'ASC 820;
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent vyith rnarket, Iricorfie arid coM
approaches tb measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives,
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest :priprity to Leyel .3
rrieasurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under'FASB AS,6 ;820 are
described as'fpllbws:
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PROGRAfVI BELKNAP- MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEb FINAKICIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2Q21

Level '1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identicarinvestments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 -Iriputs to. the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices Jn active markets, which are either.directly or indirectly observat?le .as
•of .the reporting date, arid fair value can be determined through the use of
models or^pther valuation methodologies.

Level 3.T Ihputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs In
•situations-where there is little or no market activity for the asset orMiability
and the reporting eritity rhakes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At Febmary 28,'2022 and .2021, the Organization's investments were classified, as, Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level It

2022 2021

Beginning balance - rriutual funds- $ 126,996 $. 109,078
To^al gains - mutual funds 11.797 17.918

Ending balance - mutual funds S 138.793 $ 126.996

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities-
approximates fair value because, of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also had $1,000 invested in a Partnership, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February 28, 2021. During the year ended February 28.
2022, the Organization Is no longer a partner and a final K-1 was received.

17, OTHER MATTERS
The Irripact of thd novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to .prevent'its'spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the irripact of these
disruptions, including the.e^ent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial
and operational results, -will be dictated by the length of time that suph disruptions
continue;and. Ih turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the GOVID--19
pandemic and .the Impact of governmental regulations that might b,e irriposed in
response to the pandemic.
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - (VIERRIIVIACK COUNTIES: INC.

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE VEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

18. TRANSFER OF/ARTNERSHIP INTEREST
Dunng tHe Vear ended'FebroVry 28'. 2021, Community Action Program of Belknap-
Meniniack Cqupties, Inc. acquired a. partnership interest ip a low-income housing
limited partnership, Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership.

The following is a summarV' of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acquisition.

Date of Transfer 03/01/2020

Gash

Cash reserves

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Property, net
Other assets

3,793

58,239

2.496
10,827

980,089
8.132

Total assets

Note.payabie
Other iiabiiities

$  1.063.576 ■

$ 336,311

24.019

Total liabilities

Partners' capital

Total liabilities and partners'
capita)

360,330

703.246

$  1.063.576

19. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts frorn the prior year financial statements have b^n
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentatbn of the current year.
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COMMUNITY ACTION,PROGRAIVl BELKNAP- MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

^NbTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 ANb:202l

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

-Subsequent events are >events or transactions that occur after the consolidated
statement of financial position date, but before the consolidated financialstatements are
available to be issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or tfansactioris'that
.provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated statement
of financial position date, including the estimates inherent In the process of preparing
consolidated financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that
provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the consolidated statement of
financial position date, but arose after that date. Managemeh't has evaluated
subsequent events through Septerhber 8, 2022, the date'the consolidated" financial
statements were,available to be issued.
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COMWUHtTY ACTION PROBftAH eELXNAP • HERftlMACK CQUHHES. INC:

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOrTURES OP PEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENOEn FEBRUAUr

PEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

US OEPARTWEWT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICEa

HEAD START CLUSTER

"  H«ad Start
.CRSSA - Hud Stan

ARRA • K«ad Start

Low incanie Homa Enargy Assbtanca PregrBtn
CV-Low IneorTW Homa Energy Assbtenea Program
Low Ittooma Home Ertergy AisiManca ProgranvWX

CnmrTHinity Sarvfeae BtOC* Grarrt

CV-CommuraiyServieaa BloA Orarit

Social Servicea Slodi Qcant^loma Dalvarea i Congragata MoaN
Sodal Sorvices aiodi Orant-Sarvtca Uttk

Temporary Aasbiatxa lot Needy Parnttae-ParnHy Ranting
1 arttporary Assbtanca lor Needy PamSae-Woilipiace Succoes

AGING CLUSTER

Tide lU. Pan S-Seoler Trartaponaiion
TUa III. Part C-Home OaNvarod Maato-HOCS

Title 111, Pan C-Horrw OalNerad Meab
CV-TWe III. Pan C-Hema Oatrered Mooli
NSIP

CHILD CAra AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER

ChHd Cara S Oevatopmani Blodt QraM
ChUd Cara Mandatory S Matdting Funds of the CCOF

MEOICAIO CLUSTER

Madleat Asdsianca Program
Medical AMtttanca Program • Vamrts

Pamty ̂arnktg - Sarvlcas
Matamal, Infant, S Early Childnooil Home Vtsffing Rogram
Natieital Famtty Careglver Support, TVJo HI. Pan E-Sarvice Link
Spedal Rogmms for Aging. Title IV-$ervica Link
State Headl> ineuranca Assistance Program
MetScere Enrelimeni Assbtanca Progrwtv

ASSISTANCE USTINO

WUMBER

93,600

03 600

93.600

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR'S HAMB

93,568

93.568

93.568

03.S69

83,969

93.667

03.667

93.558

93,558

03044

93 045

93.045

93.045

03053

03.575

03.596

03.778

93.778

93.317

93.870

03.052

83.048

93.324

93.07t

Slata ol New Hampahire-
State of New Katepalw*
Stale of New HampNiire

Stele of New Hamoai*o

Slate of New Hampahire

StMe of New HempaMra
Stale of New HampeMre

State ol New HampefWe
Southern New Hampshire Servlcea

State i>l New Hampshire
State of New Httmpsnir*

Siiiie of New Hampsnire
Stete of New Hatripehlra
State of New Hampshlra

Slata of New Hampshin
Stale of New HernpsNre

State d New Harrasliiie

Gateways Community Sarvicas

Slate of New HampahJra

StWe of New HampsNra

State of New KampsNre

State ol New Hampshire

Stata of New Hampsiwe
State of New Hampshire

IDENTIFYING NUMSER-

01CH2052-03<I1

01HET000622

CLUSTER TOTAL

02<52-S2-520010-18870000

02-52-52-520010-24400000

02-02-024010-77050000-500587'
TOTAL

050954MS-450010-7I46

0509S-045-450010-7148

TOTAL

05-05-48^81010-0255

2a01NHSOSR

TOTAL

I502NHTANF

05-95-45-450010-612700(»>

TOTAL

178SHHT3$S

1TAANHT3H0

17AANHT3HD

1056477

aoSTER TOTAL

NONE PROVIOEO
NOHEPROVIOEO

CLUSTER T01AL

90NWPC000601-00

CLUSTER TOTAL

FPHPPA0ie063

X10MC33S9S

2001NH0AFO02

90MP024102

90SA0003-02-00

20QINHMISH-00

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

4,920,814

14,655
70,506

5,005,977

2,517,833

2,923,900
248,488

5,000,228

538.251
30697

569,148

288.050

6,596

294.648

007

19.522

206>9

'124J74

9.016

494.672

ts,o»
170,034

813,126

403,542

59,544

483,086

72,615

32,433

104,948

56,537

69527

32,045
28,202

31.088
10.707

PASSED THROUGH.

US DEPARTMENT OF AORCULTURE

Special Suppl. NutriBen Program for Woman. Infants 8 Children
Senior Farmars Market >

Child 8 Adult Csre Food Rogram

CHILD MLrTRTTION CLUSTER

Summer Food Service Program Fpr Children

10557

10.578

10.558

tO.S5S

Stale ol New Hampahira
State of New Hianpshira
Stata of New Hampshire

StMe gf New Hampshire

KH3 TOTAL

I9154NH703W1003 8 5003

IS1S4NH083VB303

NONE pROvioeo

13.190.884

NONE PROVIDED

612.057

73.124

180523

,148,179

Sea Notsa to Schedule of Expandftures of Federal Aws^
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FEDERAL CRANTOR/

FOOD OtSTRlOUT^ CLUSTER
Commodity Swpplemafilal Food Pmgrem
Emorgwcy Food AMlstanco Program-AdrrSnistnUioo
Efnoroeocy Food AisSitanco PiOQnm

CORPORAHOH FOR KATtOWAL * CdHMUHtTY SEWVtCES

FOSTER ORANDPARENT8/SENIOR COMPANIOrJ CLUSTER
Saniof Compaflion Progrsfn

ua PEPARTMEKT OF TRAW8PORTATIOH

Formtia OrenU lof Rural Aroaa-Corteonl Transit

Formia Crans tor Rural Araas

TRANSrr SERVICES PROGRAUS CLUSTER

Enhancod MoURy at Sonton & Ind. WA>*atilltle»CAT
Entioncad MoUtty tt Seniors S Ind. W/DisaMtle»-Rursl Trsnspodabon
Eiflhareod Motdlfy ol SorOon & Ind. WyptreUlies-Rural Trarttpofiadon
Enhanced McUity ol Seniors & Ind. W/OrsatSUos-Voltanaer ̂ ivora
Enhanced MotrUty d Saniors S Ind. WlDlsabasas

FEDERAL TRANSIT aUSTER

Btts and Bus Fadutles Formula S Oiserationary Programs

US DEFARTWENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMEWT

Emorgency Sdullans Grant
CV-Emergency SoMiona Grant

CVCOSG Siaio's Program & Non-Enutiemora Gram* in Hawei

SuDPOTBva Housing

Continuurn d Cato Program

US PEPARTMEMT OF ENERCY

WeatharizsUon Asslstanoa tor Low Incoma P«raor»

US PEPARTMEKT OP LABOR

Senior Community Setvica Emptoymara Program

U S. PEPARTMEKT OF THE TREASURY

Coronavlrus RiAef Futrd

Emergency Rantai AsaittanM Program

ASSISTANCE UST1NG

tfluasiB

ContlrHMd

PASSED THROUGH

PASS THROUGH GRANTOR'S HAMS

10.S6S Stale of New Hampshire

tu,568 Staio d New Hampehira
tO.SB9 Siaia oi New KampstCro

(H.0I8

20.509 State d New Hampthira-OepaRrnflnt of Transportation
20,509 State d New Hampanira-Dapertment d Transporttitltin

20.513 Slata ol New ItampsrRe-Oepanment of Traneporiailon
20.513 State d Hew Kompshlre-Oeportmem d Transportation
20.513 State d New HampiHrfrOepanmew ol Tcarrsoortailon
20SI3 Merrlmack County
20.513 State ol New Hompshita-Oetrertrnonl ol Transportation

20.S26 Stttta d Naw Hampshifo-Oeparttnont d Transponalion

14.231 SCMO d New Hampshire
14.231 State d New HampaNre

14.228 COFA

14.235 Stale d New Hampehira

i4.287 Stated New HampsMra

81.042 Stated New Hamostiira

17.235 StMadNawHampshIra

21.019 Stale d Naw Hampshire

21.023 Governor's Office lor Emergency Ratel 8 Recovery

IPgNTIFYINQ NUMBER

tS154NH814Y800S

81750000

8I7SODOO

CLUSTER TOTAL

U SPA TOTAL

16SCANH001

CHCSTOTAL

NK-1Sd048

3BuBa*

TOTAL

NH-tB-X043

NH-t5-X043

NH-GS-X001
NH4S-X001

3Bu4as

CLUSTER TOTAL

2Bu»4e

DOTTOTAL

05-05-42-423010-7S27
05-95-42-423010-7027

TOTAL

20-007.COPSGV3.CVPS

05-05-42-423010-702M 02-600731

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731

HUP TOTAL

01-02-02-024010-77060000

DOE TOTAL

03-22-22-330510-1453000

OOL TOTAL

SS-2021 •BHSG3-H0USi-02

US TREASURY TOTAL

TOTAL

5 1.219.051

455.233
5.666212

r.342.496

S 8.356.179

% 3S4.4S0

s 384.450

8 1236,484
432.046

1.868.530

154.056

20.407

64.128
844

222.165

461.600

180.416

8 2.200348

8 21.586
430,021

451.607

20.861

142,106

34.047

S 849321

5 269.908

8 269.908

8 367.195

$ 367.195

8 24.205

15.25Z459

8 15276.664

8 40.789.147

8 1.003.133

77.933
5.668.212

8 6.749278

8 6.749.278

6,749.278

Sea Htrias le the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Award*
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COMMUNITY ACTION ^MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The-accpmpahying schedule of expenditures of fe;deral awacds (the Schedule)
Includes, the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs.of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented In
accordance with the requirements of Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200,' Uniforrh Administrative '.Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uhiforrri Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Corhmuhity Action Prpgrarn
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE .2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the. Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles^
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the norrnal course of
business to arndunts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE
Community Action program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

N0TE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonrtiohetary assistance is reported In the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUOmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

.We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
AuditJng Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Jnc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2022, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 8, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate In the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, on detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reaspnable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected apd corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attenliori by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control
that might, be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
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our audit we did hot .identify any deficiencies'in Internal control'that we consider t'o'be m'^eria!
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant defidencies rnay exist that were'
notldentitied.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part -of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-,Merrlmack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material, misstatement;
we perfortned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of lavys, regulations, contracts,,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and rnateriai effect on
the determination of;the financial statements. However, providing an opinion ph corhpliance
with those provisions'was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not .express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disolpsed no instances of noncompliance: or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards:

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is.solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
corhpiia'nce and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the. brgarlizaiion's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication |s not suitable
for any other purpos.e.

Concord, New Hampshire
September Q, 2022 *
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Commuhlty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrirnack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement [haX
coulb have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Beiknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2022.
Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrirnack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Iric. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Goyemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative-Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federai
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of. Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties. Inc. and to rtieet dur other ethical responsibilities. In accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to pur audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and apprppriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Respqrisibflities of Management for Cornpliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements .referred to above, and for the
■design,'implementation, and fnaihtenance of effective" internal contral over compliance with the
•requirements'Of laws, -statutes, regulations, rules, ;and- provisions of ■contracts-or-gfant
agreernehts applicable to Community Action Prpgfarn Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

pur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncpmpliance with
the .compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud, or error, and
express an opinion ori Corrimunity Action Program' Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
compliance based, on our audit.. Reasonable assurance is a high leyel of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material nonqompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, -as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentaUons. or the override
of iriternal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements, referred to above Is
considered material If there Is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made, by a .reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community. Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance- with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governrnent
Auditing S/andards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to .fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.'Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Beiknap-iyierrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Comrriunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Incv's; internal control over compliance relevant to the audit ,in .order to .design audit
procedures that arerappropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belkriap-Mefrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
materiel weaknesses in Internal control over compliance that we Identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or-operation of a
control pyer compliance does not allow managem'enf of employees, in the hpfrnal .course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, vnoncbmpliance with a
type of corhpliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A materia) weakness in
internal .control, oyer compliance is a deficiency, or combination of "deficiencies, in internal
control over corhpllance, subh that there is a reasonable possibility that material
nohcbmpliance with a type of oompllance requirement of a federal, program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in-internal control
over compliance with,a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a matefi.al'weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
atterition by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal cpnlfol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors" Responsibilities-for the Audit of Compliance section .above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, dliring our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as.defined above. However,, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over corripliance may exist that have
not been identified.

■Our audit was not designed forthe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is*expressed.

'The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing.of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any .other

•purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8,2022
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNtlES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS'.RESULTS

'1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodlfi^ opinion on whether the financial statements
of Corhnlunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies^ relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial'Reporting and'on
Qpmpliarice: snd other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Staterhents Performed in
Accordance-with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances-of honcortipiiance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Pragram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc:, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with- Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audjt.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award prograrris are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Mdjor Program and
On Internal Coritrql Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No rriaterlal
weaknesses are reported.

5. the auditprs' report on cortipliance for the major federal award prograrns for Cornmunity
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were'ho audit findings .that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
sectiori 200.516(a).

7. The programs te^ed as major programs include:
U.S. Depaftrtient of Health and Human Services, Aging Cluster' 93.0^, 93.045 and
93:053; U.S. Department of Transportation, Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509;
U.S. Departnrient of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Prograrn, 21.023.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,223,554-

9. Community Action Prpgram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was deterrhined to not be a
low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

33



COMMUNITY-ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IMC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

fyiATERIAL WEAKNESS

2021-001

Condition: the financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwprk
included accounts that had not been reconciled accurately or in a timely manner.

Recommendation: The auditors' recommend that the financial close process includes a review
of all significant accounts.

■Current Status: Accounts have been reconciled accurately and in a timely manner. Not a
repeated finding in th'e current year.
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Effective 7/2023

O ̂  COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
9l\rm BE1-I<^AP-MERR1MACK COUNTIES, INC. A
fU Lj EMPOWERIMG communities since 1965 ^5^

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chris Pyles, Chairperson
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

David Croft, Vice Chairperson
Board member since: 5/13/2021

Dennis Martino

Board member since: 2/24/2005

A. Bruce Carri, Treasurer
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Ashley Reed
HS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Safiya Wazir, Secretary
Board member since: 11/2/2016 David Siff, Esq.

Board member since: 10/2/2013

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009

Tracy Vergason
Board member since; 5/12/2022

Current fiscal year (3/1/23 - 2/29/24) board meetings - 3/9/23, 5/25/23, 9/14/23, 11/9/23,1/11/24
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCOUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

PY 24

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

Name Job Title Salary
% Paid

from this

Contract

Amount

Paid from

this

Contract

Jeanne Agri Chief Executive Officer $145,916.10 0% $0.00

Jill Lesmerises Chief Fiscal Officer $108,927.00 0% $0.00

Leah Richards Director of Energy & Area
Resource Centers

$78,702.00 20% $15,740.40

Lindsey Hart Fuel Assistance Program
Manager

$47,053.50 50% $23,526.75



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communication skills: written, verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National Office ofHcad .Start to
serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to ensure they meet
outcomes approved by the board througli strategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all
local., state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Executive Director 2018-present

•  Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board

•  Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.

•  See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016 - 2018

Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans

Director of Child Development Programs 2001-2016
•  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and

improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

•  Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest qualily of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transportation



Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements

•  Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
•  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and partners
•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in

compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and

integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Directorfor Child Development Programs 1999-2001
Establishedand managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,
milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices

•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout
program operations

•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with
Governing Board, Policy Council

•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
Coordinate personal and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff
progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards

•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance
Improvement Plans when warranted.

ChildCare Center Director/Site Manager 1995-1997
•  Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs of staff members and the team as a whole

•  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor -1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented s^dent learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education 1981



i l l Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of

valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit

experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management,

bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit

preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 403B pension compliance and audit

preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21 - Present

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

CAPBM is a not-for-profit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over 300

employees and holds 8 million in assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work papers for annual

audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing

projects, prepare paperwork for monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review

accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Senior Accountant. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million in revenue with 30 legal

entities. The Agency has over 400 employees and holds 84 million in assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers for

annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various

funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for

accounts payable and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various

governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, Instrumental in getting PaperSave up and

running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17

Staff Accountant. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

At the time of my employment, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties was a not-for-
profit with 20 million in revenue. The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual

audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered

journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable input,
entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts

payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members

1/00-9/02

Account Supervisor ffor 2 Companies). Whole life. Inc.

Whole Life, Inc. is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and

held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and

cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid

9/98-1/00

Account Receivable Clerk (for 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue work papers

5/93 - 9/98

Assistant Controller. Biosvstems. Inc.

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,
handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared

journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88 - 5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

The Caring CommunitY of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million in revenue.

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,

coded cash receipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,

prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University

Graduated cum laude

1992-1996

Associate Degree in Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College

Named to Dean's list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985

Merrimack Valley High School

Member of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17 - Present

Director on The Loudon Communications Council

Council is responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon

and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH website. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2

years.



LEAH RICHARDS

EDUCATION

Master of Education

Higher Education

Ohio University

2004-2006

Bachelor of Science

Journalism

Ohio University

2000-2004

TEACHING

PCC 201

Professional

communication and

career planning course

Instructor, two semesters

SNHU 101

Seminar course focused

on academic and social

transition to college

Instructor, six semesters

SNHU 303

Course for college

juniors focusing on life

after college

Instructor, two semesters

RA Training Course

Course focused on

leadership, social justice

Instructor, four semesters

UC 100; FYE Course

Developed lesson plans

for four-credit course for

first year students

Instructor, one semester

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Agile, collaborative administrator with 17 years of progressive, multifaceted experience in

non-profit settings. Visionary, strategic leader and strong supervisor with a keen eye for

detail. Confident, technologically savvy communicator with experience presenting at

national, regional, and local conferences. Particular strengths in establishing rapport,

providing empowering supervision, problem solving, supporting vulnerable populations,

leveraging technology, process improvement, and managing change.

EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties

Concord, NH 2021 - Present

Director, Energy and Area Resource Centers feb 2022-Present

Directly supervise the Fuel Assistance and Electric Assistance programs

Oversee Emergency Food Assistance for agency and supervise a Food Assistance

Manager and three busy food pantries

Manage team of 25 staff members supporting energy and food assistance through

network of resource centers in five locations

Serve a member of the agency's senior leadership team

Area Center Operations Manager Apr2021-Feb 2022

Supervised staff and volunteers for area resource centers in five locations

Managed three food pantries and served as Emergency Food Assistance Coordinator

Assisted with all operations, including process and workflow improvement, hiring and

training, budgeting and ordering, and implementing new technologies

Southern New Hampshire University

Manchester, NH 2010 - 2021

Ten years of progressive leadership In student support and administration. Began in

direct service role as advisor before leading department and now multiple

departments. Coordinated robust advising program, including leading through

successful office restructure. Created and implemented new systems, policies,

and processes. Increased faculty usage of Early Warning system by 200%.

Assistant Dean, Student Success Aug 2017-Apr2021

Provided leadership to division of multiple departments with nearly 30 FT staff and

more than ISO student staff (both paid and volunteer positions)

Supported multiple directors of busy departments with daily operations,

prioritization, collaboration, and change management

Established and grew academic coaching model to support at-risk students

Managed division-wide and campus-wide projects, including staff onboarding

processes, policy revision, and communication plans

Led as member of Enrollment Management and Student Success leadership team,

providing insight to campus leadership on student retention and persistence



LEAH RICHARDS

SERVICE AND

COMMITTEE

WORK

Emergency Food and

Shelter Merrimack

County local board

(chair, 2021-present)

Neighbor Helping

Neighbor Board

member

Scholastic Standing

Committee (chair,

2017-2021)

University Policy

Advisory Board

NACADANH State

Liaison and Steering

Committee member

(state rep, 2017-19)

Basic Needs Support

General Education

Committee

Judicial Hearing Board

University Honors

Advisory Board

Safe Zones Facilitator

Student Club Advisor

to Generation Equality

Retention Taskforce

President's

Commission on LGBTQ

Advocacy

(chair. 2012-2014)

EXPERIENCE continued

Director, Academic Advising Office Jui 2014-Aug 2017

Cultivated, implemented, and assessed successful, developmental first year/transfer
student advising program for on-campus students

Coordinated all advising services for campus of 3,000 students

Developed ongoing training and resources to educate and empower 135 faculty/staff
academic advisors. Increased faculty usage by early warning system by 200%

Directly supervised nine full-time staff members and, indirectly, 40 student advisors

Provided leadership on policy development and revision, budget, program

development, event planning, and strategic planning

Utilized a variety of technologies including multiple CRM and information systems,,

survey and data tools, scheduling software, and film editing and infographics tools

Assistant Director, Academic Advising Aug 2012-Jun 2014

Created initiatives and best practices for first year students on campus

Focused on campus collaboration development of high-impact practices, including

piloting themed learning communities and a new registration model for new students

Academic Advisor Jui 2010-Jui 2012

Advised caseload of approximately 200 primarily first year college students,

developing relationships, programs, and initiatives to support their development

University of New Hampshire

Durham, NH 2006-2010

Four years of increased responsibility in residence life department focused on deep,

developmental interactions with students. Co-led New Staff Development team.

Organized a 'Future Leaders of Student Affairs' conference and workshop series.

Residence Half Director A ug 2006 - Jun 2010

Cultivated community in two residence halls with populations of 150-300 students

Entrusted to launch a brand new traditional and suite-style hall which housed a

multicultural theme floor

Partnered with students and faculty to develop learning communities focusing on

civic engagement & diversity

Served as a conduct hearing officer, budget manager, academic coach, hall council
advisor, and crisis responder



Lindsey E. Hart

EDUCATION

Union Institute and University, Brattleboro, Vermont
Master of Arts, Clinical Mental Health Counselor
Union Institute & Universi^' is accredited The Higher l^amin^ Commission and is a
member ofthe North Central Association.

Green Mountain College, Poultney, Vermont
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology
An environmental liberal arts college accredited by the New England Association ofColleges and
Employers, Inc.

PERTINENT COURSEWORK

Counseling and Psychotherapy, Abnormal Psychology'
Developmental Psychology and the Exceptional Child
Perceptions, Special Topics in Pharmacology and Behavior
Social Research, Senior Seminar, Positive Psychology
Social Theory, Psychology of Aging

WORK EXPERIENCE

Program Manager, Fuel Assistance
Community Action Program June 2023 - Current
Communicate directly with vendors and landlords and clients
concerning Fuel Assistance questions and concerns. Facilitate
processing of emergency applications. Assist with training of intake
staff and certifiers regarding applications. Reporting to the
Department of Energy on a scheduled basis as well as attend
meetings.

Social Worker

Merrimack County Nursing Home October 2017-June 2023
Conducting assessments and intakes. Running a family support group
monthly. Writing social service notes after each interaction and care
plan. Assisting as a hospice liaison when needed.

Teacher

Polka Dots Child Care June 2016-August 2017
A teacher in a classroom of one to two year olds. Planning
curriculum and implementing activities and social interactions.



SKILLS

Teacher

Nadeau's Playschool August 2013-May 2016
A teacher in a classroom of two year olds. Planning curriculum and
implementing acdvides and social interacdons.

Para educator

Springfield School District August 2010-june 2012
One on two support for a child with medical and behavioral needs
and one with special education and medical needs.

Social Services

Springfield Health and Rehab March 2011-May 2012
Conducdng assessments and intakes. Writing social ser\'ice notes.
Assisting with daily tasks and paperwork.

Community Outreach Specialist
Health Care and Rehabilitation Ser\dces June 2011-August 2011
Summer Integration Program
Work one on one with a child with behavioral or emotional issues;

provide support for other staff members, role model, and offer
different perspectives for the children in social communit)' settings.

Excellent organizational and interpersonal skills

Dependable; efficient; self-motivated; quick learner

Resourceful

Computer proficient

Notar)' Public


